

ORDINANCE NO. _____

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTERS 2, 4, 11, 15, 17, 18, 20, 22, 26, 28, 30, 31 AND 32 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF KILLEEN, TEXAS, TO REPEAL FEE PROVISIONS; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CONFLICTING PROVISIONS; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City Council delegated all user rates and fees that did not require City Council approval to the City Manager to be set within established parameters; and

WHEREAS, the delegated fees are reviewed within those parameters, preliminarily set and made available for public comment and are established in a separate fee schedule, those fees should be removed from the codified city ordinances; **NOW, THEREFORE**,

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KILLEEN, TEXAS:

SECTION I. That Chapter 2, Administration, Article III, section 2-95 is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 2-95. - Credit card processing fee.

- (a) ~~There shall be a Processing Fee, which shall initially be \$2.00, added to each credit card transaction collected by a city employee for the payment of a fee, fine, court cost, or other charge. However, if the fee, fine, court cost or other charge is less than \$40.00, the processing fee shall only be 5% of the original fee, fine, court cost, or other charge amount.~~ The Processing Fee, as stipulated in the adopted fee schedule, will be applied to each credit card transaction conducted by a city employee for online or telephone payments of fees, fines, court costs, or other charges.
- (b) The processing fee authorized by this section shall be deposited into the general fund.

SECTION II: That Chapter 4, Ambulances, Article II, section 4-45 is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 4-45. No Transport Calls.

~~When a call is received from a scene of an accident and/or event and treatment is provided but transport is unnecessary, a bill for services performed and supplies used will be charged if the cost exceeds twenty five dollars (\$25.00).~~

If a call is received from the patient's residence and no treatment is provided to the sick or injured, and transportation to a medical facility is refused by the patient or family member, then a fee as provided in the adopted fee schedule may be charged.

When treatment is provided to the sick or injured in response to a call for EMS, but transportation to a medical facility is refused by either the patient or a paramedic on the scene, then a fee as provided in the adopted fee schedule may be charged, if the call is to a location within the city limits. Fees for no-transport calls outside of the city limits shall be determined by contract with other governmental entities requesting the service.

* * * *

SECTION III: That Chapter 11, Fire Prevention and Protection, Article VIII, Section

11-154 is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 11-154. - Schedule of Fire Service Fees.

~~The following fees are hereby established for recovery of fire services provided in an emergency incident:~~

~~(a)Fire and Rescue Services Billing Fees (Non-hazardous materials incidents)(1)LEVEL 1 RESPONSE~~

~~A fire service fee of \$150 shall be collected for Level 1 Response, which shall include:~~

~~(a)Basic response by one Class A Engine/Ladder Truck or Rescue Truck, to include:1.Assessment of the injuries to persons involved in the emergency incident accident prior to arrival of an EMS unit, providing patient care until the arrival of an EMS unit, assisting an EMS crew with patient care, and traffic and crowd control to prevent further emergency incidents for up to 15 minutes; and2.Checking for fire hazard at an emergency incident, disconnecting the battery on damaged vehicles to prevent fires, and checking for spills or leaking fluids.(2)LEVEL 2 RESPONSE~~

~~A fire service fee of \$300 shall be collected for Level 2 Response, which shall include any Level 1 Response, plus any of the following:~~

~~(a)Traffic and crowd control from 16 minutes to one hour;(b)Application of absorbent to absorb leaking fluids or spills at an emergency incident;(c)Clean scene of any emergency incident of any debris, pick up vehicle parts and/or glass from roadway;(d)Assist in vehicle removal;(e)Wash down of spilled or leaked fluids from vehicles involved in an emergency incident; and(f)Response of an additional Class A Engine/Ladder Truck.(3)LEVEL 3 RESPONSE~~

~~A fire service fee of \$400 shall be collected for Level 3 Response, which shall include any Level 1 or 2 Response, plus any of the following:~~

~~(a)Traffic and crowd control of more than one hour but less than two hours;(b)Extrication of a single trapped patient;(c)Response of three or more Class A Engines, Ladder Trucks or Rescue Trucks;(d)Establishment of a landing zone for air medical response; and(e)Response of a Command Vehicle (maximum of one).(4)LEVEL 4 RESPONSE~~

~~A fire service fee of \$500 shall be collected for Level 4 Response, which shall include any Level 1, 2, or 3 Response, plus any of the following:~~

~~(a)Extrication of multiple patients in a single vehicle;(b)Manpower involved in use of power or hand tools including K-12 saw, Chain Saw, Reciprocating Saw, Drill, Acetylene Cutting Torch, Air Bags, SCBA Cylinder, Vehicle Stabilization System, plus charge for the tool as listed below;(c)Traffic and crowd control in excess of two hours;(d)Assisting Police Department with incident reconstruction;(e)Extrication of multiple patients in the same emergency incident;(f)Extrication of a single patient that takes more than one hour; and(g)Emergency incidents involving more than two vehicles with more than two patients requiring patient care.(b)In all cases, the following fees may be billed for each vehicle involved in an emergency incident in addition to service fees listed in subsection (a) above:~~

~~Rescue Equipment~~

~~(1)Vehicle Stabilization \$150(2)K-12 saw \$60(3)K-tool \$25(4)Chain Saw \$50(5)Sawzall \$60(6)Windshield Tool \$20(7)Rescue Blanket \$35(8)Rope \$25(9)SCBA refill (one fee) \$25(10)Medical Disposables from an engine or rescue truck \$25~~

~~Fire Equipment~~

~~(11)Flares \$5 (per unit)(12)AFFF/6% foam \$75 (per 5 gallons)(13)AFFF/1% foam \$200 (per 5 gallons)(14)Class A foam \$75 (per 5 gallons)(15)AR foam \$200 (per 5 gallons)(16)Salvage cover \$50 (per unit)(17)Water/Foam Extinguisher \$25 (per unit)(18)Dry Chemical Extinguisher \$50 (per unit)(19)CO2 Extinguisher \$50 (per unit)(20)Plug and Dike \$75 (per incident)(21)Barricade Tape \$25 (per incident)~~
Fire Service Fees will be charged in accordance with the adopted fee schedule.

SECTION IV: That Chapter 15, Licenses, Permits and Miscellaneous Business

Regulations, is hereby amended to read as follows:

ARTICLE III. GARAGE SALES

* * *

Sec. 15-73. - Conditions under which permitted.

Garage sales are permitted under the following conditions:

- (1) No person shall have a garage sale within the limits of the city without first obtaining a permit.

- (2) Any person desiring to have a garage sale shall make application to the building and inspections division for permit. Such application shall state the name of the person who is having the sale, the address of such person, the location of the sale, and the dates of the sale. A copy of such permit shall be posted in a conspicuous place during the time and at the place where the sale is being held.
- (3) The building and inspections division shall charge and collect before the issuance of any permit a fee ~~of five dollars (\$5.00)~~ in accordance with the adopted fee schedule.
- (4) Only the sale of tangible personal property at retail, by a person who does not hold himself out as engaging, nor does habitually engage, in the business of selling such tangible personal property at retail, shall constitute a garage sale under this article.
- (5) There shall not be more than two (2) sales at the same address during any calendar year.
- (6) All sales shall be confined to the yard, garage or patio of the premises.
- (7) No merchandise acquired solely for the purpose of resale shall be sold.
- (8) The duration of any sale shall not exceed three (3) consecutive calendar days.
- (9) Sales by churches, charities and fraternal organizations for the purpose of raising funds may be held on property other than that owned by the organization and tangible personal property donated by members or others may be sold.

* * *

ARTICLE IV. NONCOMMERCIAL CAR WASHES

* * *

Sec. 15-83. - Conditions under which permitted.

Car washes are permitted under the following conditions:

- (1) No person shall have a car wash within the limits of the city without first obtaining a permit.
- (2) Any owner or lessee of property who wishes to sponsor a car wash on said property, or the authorized employee or agent of said owner or lessee, shall make written application to the building and development services department a car wash permit, at least 48 hours prior to the proposed date and time of the car wash.
- (3) The following information shall be provided on the application:
 - a. The name and address of the sponsor;
 - b. The name of the organization that will be holding the car wash;
 - c. The name and address of the person who will be responsible for the activities of the organization members at the car wash;
 - d. The proposed date, times and location of the car wash; and
 - e. A statement by the applicant that he/she is the owner or lessee of the property where the car wash is to be held or is an employee or agent of the owner or

lessee who has been delegated control of the premises by the owner or lessee, and that the applicant assumes all liability regarding the car wash.

The application shall also be accompanied by payment of a nonrefundable fee ~~of fifteen dollars (\$15.00)~~ in accordance with the adopted fee schedule.

- (4) The building official shall review each application for a car wash permit. Upon issuance of a permit, the permit holder shall be given a copy of the permit and a copy of the provisions of this article.
- (5) A copy of the permit shall be posted in a conspicuous place during the time and at the place where the car wash is being held.
- (6) The duration of any car wash will not exceed two (2) consecutive calendar days, and each approved location will be allowed no more than two (2) events in a twelve (12) month period.
- (7) It shall be an offense for any person associated with the car wash to be located in the public right-of-way, state highway department right-of-way or the visibility triangle as defined by the code of ordinances of the city of Killeen.
- (8) It shall be an offense for a customer of any car wash to be located, whether inside their motor vehicle or not, in the public right-of-way, state highway department right-of-way or the visibility triangle as defined by the code of ordinances of the city of Killeen. This provision does not prohibit a person from traveling through rights-of-way in order to enter and exit said car wash.
- (9) All car wash activities shall take place at a distance of more than twenty-five (25) feet from the street curb, or from the near edge of the travel lane or lanes of any uncurbed street or road. * * *

* * *

SECTION V: That Chapter 17, Mobile Homes and Mobile Home Parks, Article II,

Section 17-5 is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 17-5. - Connection of utilities.

- (a) It shall be unlawful for any person to connect utilities to, or to occupy a mobile home within the city, except where it is located in a duly licensed mobile home park under the terms of this chapter or on property zoned R-MS.
- (b) It shall be unlawful for any person to connect utilities to, or to occupy a travel trailer within the city except where it is located in a duly licensed vacation travel trailer park under the terms of this chapter, under the terms of the city zoning ordinance, or as provided in this section.
- (c) A person may connect electricity to a travel trailer for the purposes of maintenance or storage.

- (d) A person may connect electricity to and occupy a travel trailer that is located on the property of a non-profit entity for a period not to exceed forty-eight (48) hours. A non-profit entity may request a longer period of time for a travel trailer to be occupied on its property by submitting an application for permit to the building official. Each application for permit shall be accompanied by a permit fee ~~of \$15 per trailer~~ in accordance with the adopted fee schedule.

* * *

SECTION VI: That Chapter 18, Nuisances, Section 18-59, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 18-59. - Disposal of junked vehicles; remedies.

- A. A junked vehicle or vehicle part shall be disposed of by removal to a scrapyard, motor vehicle demolisher, or any suitable site operated by the city for processing as scrap or salvage.
- B. Any individual who fails to timely abate a nuisance may be required to pay the city restitution for the city's cost in removing, abating, or curing such nuisance, plus an administrative fee ~~of one hundred dollars (\$100.00)~~ in accordance with the adopted fee schedule.
- C. Any vehicle or vehicle part, after removal by this article, shall not be reconstructed or made operable.

* * *

SECTION VII: That Chapter 20, Solicitors, Peddlers, Section 20-81, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 20-81. - Required fee.

It shall be unlawful for any person to solicit within the city of Killeen without first obtaining a permit from the city secretary's office. A person's or organization's first permit application of the calendar year shall be accompanied by a ~~fifty-dollar (\$50.00)~~ registration fee in accordance with the adopted fee schedule. Additionally, a ~~ten-dollar (\$10.00)~~ fee in accordance with the adopted fee schedule for each individual solicitor is required each time a person or organization submits a permit application. The purpose of the ~~ten-dollar~~ individual solicitor fee is to defray the cost of providing the individual permits that are required to be worn on each individual solicitor's person. No application will be processed until the required fees are tendered to the city secretary. Permit fees are nonrefundable and shall not be prorated.

SECTION VIII: That Chapter 22, Police, Section 22-29, is hereby repealed as follows:

~~Sec. 22-29.—Fee for issuance of identification photos.~~

~~The following miscellaneous police department fee is hereby adopted and approved:~~

~~Identification photos\$5.00~~

Secs. 22-~~30~~²⁹—22-50. - Reserved.

SECTION IX: That Chapter 26, Subdivisions and Other Property Developments, Section 26-

189, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 26-189. - Fee.

Applicants submitting a traffic impact analysis (TIA) or traffic impact analysis worksheet for review shall pay fees in advance to cover administrative expenses in accordance with the adopted fee schedule. ~~For each traffic impact analysis and/or traffic impact analysis worksheet submitted for review, the applicant shall pay a fee in advance of the acceptance thereof to defray the actual expense of administration of this division. The fee shall be seven hundred fifty dollars (\$750.00) for a TIA and one hundred dollars (\$100.00) per TIA worksheet.~~ Fees will be reviewed and updated as necessary. ~~If a TIA or TIA worksheet fee is listed in the fee schedule that conflicts with the fee herein, the fee schedule takes precedence.~~ The fees is are nonrefundable.

SECTION X: That Chapter 28, Traffic, Section 28-241 is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 28-241. - Visibility at intersections.

- (a) For the purposes of this section, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings respectively ascribed to them:
 - (1) Parkway area shall mean that area between the curb line or grade line of any public street and the abutting private property line.
 - (2) Visibility triangle shall mean a triangle sight area, at all intersections, which shall include that portion of public right-of-way and any corner lot within the adjacent curb lines and a diagonal line intersecting such curb lines at points thirty-five (35) feet back from their intersection (such curb lines being extended if necessary to determine the intersection point).
- (b) It shall be unlawful to set out, maintain or permit or cause to be set out or maintained any tree, shrub, plant, sign or other view obstruction having a height greater than two (2) feet as measured from the top of the curb of the adjacent streets within the visibility triangle. The restriction shall not apply to permanent structures authorized by the zoning ordinance or to traffic-control signs and signals, street signs or utility poles placed within such area by authority of the city council.
- (c) It shall be unlawful to set out, maintain or permit or cause to be set out or maintained any tree, shrub or plant within any parkway area, other than within the visibility triangle, which exceeds two (2) feet in height above curb level. This prohibition shall

not apply to trees within the parkway area which are trimmed at all times so that no branches are less than six (6) feet above curb level and which are planted no less than twenty-five (25) feet apart; provided, however, such trees shall not interfere with the free passage of vehicles on the street or pedestrians on the public right-of-way or obscure the view of motor vehicle operators or any traffic-control device or street sign or otherwise create a traffic hazard.

- (d) It shall be the duty of the ~~building official~~ Director of Code Enforcement to cause a written notice to be served upon the owner of any property upon which any of the above violations exist, or upon any owner or occupant of any property which abuts any parkway area upon which any of the above violations exist to correct such violations within ten (10) days after service of such notice. Such notice shall be given personally or by letter addressed to such owner at his post office address, or, if the owner's address is not known and personal service not possible, by publication at least twice within ten (10) consecutive days. If such violation is not corrected within a ten-day period, the ~~building official~~ Director of Code Enforcement is hereby authorized and directed to cause a tree, plant, structure or obstruction constituting such violation to be trimmed, pruned, or removed to eliminate such prohibited condition, with the cost of such trimming, pruning or removal to be assessed against the property owner or abutting property owner, as the case may be, ~~the minimum fee for such service to be ten dollars (\$10.00).~~

SECTION XI: That Chapter 30, Water, Sewers and Sewage Disposal, is hereby amended to read as follows:

* * *

Sec. 30-28. - Use of water restricted.

All applications for water service must state fully and truly the purpose for which the water is required, and no water shall be used except for the purpose or purposes stated in the application, and no applicant shall permit others to use water for any purpose except those stated. In case of misrepresentation or diversion to other use, the supply shall be cut off, unless applicant pays a higher rate as provided in this article. If the water is cut off, applicant shall pay a ~~fee of ten dollars (\$10.00)~~ Service Call fee in accordance with the adopted fee schedule when water is again turned on, in addition to the rate applicable to the purpose for which the water is being used.

* * *

Sec. 30-73. - Prohibited discharges.

* * *

(b)Specifically. Except as authorized by divisions 2, 3, 4 or 5 of this article, no person shall discharge any of the following into the wastewater system:

* * *

- (8) Any trucked or hauled pollutants or waste, other than from vehicles (including vacuum trucks and vactor trucks) hauling, trucking, or otherwise transporting normal domestic wastewater, septic tank waste or chemical toilet waste, for the purpose of introducing such wastewater into the wastewater system with the express written authorization (and direction as to location of the disposal site) from the director. ~~A fee shall be established by the director for the dumping of such wastes;~~

* * *

Sec. 30-103. - Base charges for water meter, water tap. and sewer taps.

- (a) (1)The base charges shall be made for water meter, water tap and sewer taps as provided in the adopted fee schedule.
(2)Water meter and tap charge when city installs water service line. meter, and box in an established subdivision shall be as provided in the adopted fee schedule.
(3)The minimum size meter installation shall be three-quarters-inch service and three-quarters-inch by five-eighths-inch meter. All meter installation applications for meter and service larger than one (1) inch shall be sized by the water department. City will not install water lines or meters larger than two (2) inches. Applications for meters larger than one (1) inch shall be accompanied by information indicating fixtures by number and type to be serviced through each meter for proper meter sizing calculations.
(4)All sewer base tap charges shall be ~~three hundred fifty dollars (\$350.00)~~[in accordance with the adopted fee schedule.](#)
(5)Base tap charges for industrial establishments shall be determined by resolution of the city council.
(6)All applicants for water and sewer service located outside the city limits shall pay double the water meter and tap charges applicable within the city.
- (b) Repealed by Ord. No. 97-13, § II, 2-11-97.
- (c) In addition to tap charges, a meter deposit shall be required before certificate of occupancy.

* * *

Sec. 30-151. - Rates.

* * *

- ~~(d) A seventy five dollar (\$75.00) fee will be assessed per call out if a leak/blockage is determined to be on the private sewer service lateral or portion thereof that is not maintained by the city.~~

SECTION XII: That Chapter 31, Zoning, is hereby amended to read as follows:

* * *

Sec. 31-393. - Vacant structures in the historic overlay district.

(c) Fees.

(1) At the time of registration, the owner shall tender an annual registration fee and annual inspection fee. ~~The registration fee shall be five hundred dollars (\$500.00) for the first year and shall increase by fifty dollars (\$50.00) for each subsequent year (e.g., the fee in year 1 shall be five hundred dollars (\$500.00); year 2 shall be five hundred fifty dollars (\$550.00); year 3 shall be six hundred dollars (\$600.00); etc.). The annual inspection fee shall be seventy five dollars (\$75.00), plus one cent (\$0.01) per square feet of building area (excluding stairwells, elevator shafts, and mechanical rooms) in accordance with the adopted fee schedule.~~

(2) Subsequent annual registration and inspection fees in accordance with the adopted fee schedule are due no later than January 31st of each year. Annual registrations not completed by January 31st are subject to a ~~one hundred fifty dollar late fee~~ late fee in accordance with the adopted fee schedule.

* * *

Sec. 31-504. - Signs requiring permits.

All signs require a permit prior to installation with the exception of the sign types listed in section 31-503 above. Signs containing non-commercial speech are permitted anywhere that advertising or business signs are permitted, subject to the same regulations applicable to such signs. The following signs may be permitted in any zoning district:

- (1) *Temporary off-premises signs.* When a premises is for sale and displays a sign allowed under subsection 31-503(1), the owner may also obtain a permit for temporary off-premises signs in compliance with the following criteria:
 - a. Application for a permit to display temporary off-premises signs will be submitted to the building and inspections department. Upon payment of applicable permit and sticker fees, approved permits will be granted a sticker that must be attached to the sign.
 - b. Signs shall be no larger than 24" x 36".
 - c. The height of any temporary off-premises sign shall be no greater than forty-eight (48) inches.
 - d. Signs shall only be located on private property with the consent of the property owner and the distance between the temporary off-premises sign and the closest temporary sign or any small or medium off-premises sign shall be greater than thirty (30) feet measured as a radial distance from the existing sign's base.

- e. Temporary off-premises signs shall be constructed of durable waterproof materials.
- f. Temporary off-premises signs shall only be displayed on the following days of the week: Friday, Saturday, Sunday, and Monday.

(2) Temporary on-premises signs shall be allowed as follows:

- a. A permit is required prior to installation of temporary signs. The permit fee shall be ~~five dollars (\$5.00) for the first five (5) day period and an additional five dollars (\$5.00) for each subsequent five (5) day increment~~ in accordance with the adopted fee schedule.
- b. Except as provided below, only one (1) temporary wall sign and one (1) temporary ground sign are allowed per street frontage for each lease or business space at any given time. Each sign must be permitted separately.
- c. A business with frontage in excess of three hundred (300) feet may place additional temporary signs for each three hundred (300) feet of street frontage or fraction thereof with a permit for each additional sign.
- d. Except for an inflatable sign, a temporary sign shall be limited to thirty-two (32) square feet.
- e. Temporary sign placement is limited to the owner's premises.
- f. Temporary sign permits shall be issued in increments of five (5) days. Permits shall not be issued to a lease space or business space for more than one hundred and twenty days (120) per calendar year.
- g. Each temporary sign permit shall expire on the date shown on the permit.

(3) Wall and window signs meeting the requirements of section 31-506.

(4) Ground signs meeting the requirements of section 31-507.

* * *

Sec. 31-519. - Permit fees and penalties.

Sign permit fees, related electrical permit fees and related penalties shall be in accordance with ~~section 8-11 of this code of ordinances~~ the adopted fee schedule.

Sec. 31-520. - Failed inspection charges.

A failed inspection charge will be assessed upon each failed inspection. The failed inspection charge shall be in accordance with ~~re-inspection fees located in section 8-11 of this code of ordinances~~ the adopted fee schedule.

* * *

Sec. 31-522. - Sign certification tag required.

Upon final inspection and approval of the permitted sign, the owner or his authorized agent shall affix a city-issued certification tag to the sign within twenty-four (24) hours of issuance. The certification tag shall be placed either on the face, cabinet, frame or pole of a sign and must be visible from the ground. In situations where the sign elements are not accessible, the tag may be placed on or near the front door of the business. It shall be the responsibility of the sign owner and/or property owner to maintain the certification tag. Upon request, the city shall issue replacement certification tags at a cost ~~of fifteen dollars (\$15.00) each~~ in accordance with the adopted fee schedule.

* * *

Sec. 31-524. - Enforcement and appeals.

* * *

(B) *Nuisance abatement.* The city may, in conjunction with the enforcement remedies provided in this division or as a separate action, abate a nuisance as follows:

* * *

(5) *Remedies, expenses, and citation.* Any owner who violates this division shall be subject to abatement restitution, penal fine(s) or both, revocation of permit, or any other relief provided by law. A person who fails to abate such nuisance within the time provided shall be required to pay an administrative fee ~~of one hundred dollars (\$100.00)~~ in accordance with the adopted fee schedule in addition to the expenses incurred by the city to abate the nuisance.

* * *

SECTION XIII: That Chapter 32, Municipal Drainage Utility System, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 32-27. - Administrative enforcement remedies.

* * *

(h) *Nuisance abatement.* The city may, in conjunction with the administrative remedies provided in this section or as a separate action, abate a nuisance as follows:

* * *

(4) *Remedies, expenses, and citation.* Any owner who violates this article shall be subject to abatement restitution, penal fine(s) or both, or any other relief provided by law. A person who fails to abate such nuisance within the time provided shall be required to pay

an administrative fee ~~of one hundred dollars (\$100.00)~~ in accordance with the adopted fee schedule in addition to the expenses incurred by the city to abate the nuisance.

* * *

Sec. 32-63. - Enforcement.

* * *

b) *Nuisance abatement.* The city may, in conjunction with the administrative remedies provided in this section or as a separate action, abate a nuisance as follows:

* * *

(4) *Remedies, expenses, and citation.* Any owner who violates this article shall be subject to abatement restitution, penal fine(s) or both, or any other relief provided by law. A person who fails to abate such nuisance within the time provided shall be required to pay an administrative fee ~~of one hundred dollars (\$100.00)~~ in accordance with the adopted fee schedule in addition to the expenses incurred by the city to abate the nuisance.

SECTION XIV: That all ordinances or resolutions or parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

SECTION XV: That should any section or part of any section or paragraph of this ordinance be declared invalid or unconstitutional for any reason, it shall not invalidate or impair the validity, force or effect of any other section or sections or part of a section or paragraph of this ordinance.

SECTION XVI: That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Killeen, Texas, as amended, shall remain in full force and effect, save and except as amended by this ordinance.

SECTION XVII: That this ordinance shall be effective as of October 1, 2024.

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Killeen, Texas, on this the ____ day of _____, 2024, at which meeting a quorum was present, held in accordance with the provisions of V.T.C.A., Government Code, § 551.001 *et. seq.*

APPROVED:

Debbie Nash-King
MAYOR

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

ATTEST:

Holli C. Clements
CITY ATTORNEY

Laura Calcote
CITY SECRETARY